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Chapter 8 THE BUILDINGS OF THE CONSERVATION AREA

8.1 Building types

The majority of the buildings in the conservation
area are in residential uses, with two churches,

a public house and the school. Some of the
residential properties have been converted from
former warehouses, stores, or workshops, such
as Melhuish in Quay Road. Higher status houses
face St John’s Terrace and Devoran Lane with
more artisan, mainly terraced, housing along
Greenbank Road, Market Street, and Belmont
Terrace.

8.2 Building form

The buildings of the conservation area divide into
three groups according to social status, use, and
topographical orientation, with the higher status
buildings being located on the brow of the hill
providing the best views over Restronguet Creek
and the setting sun in the west. These groups
are the planned, larger houses along St John’s
Terrace; the contemporary but more modest
houses and cottages in the other streets such as
Belmont Terrace and Market Street; and the former
industrial buildings in Quay Road.

St John’s Terrace:

* High status houses occupying a prominent
location overlooking Restronguet Creek and
the Carclew Estate;

* Two storey buildings arranged as detached or
paired houses, or in short terraces;

¢ Shallow pitched roofs covered in slate, with
end chimney stacks built in brick;

* Few rooflights or dormers, leaving the roof
slopes uninterrupted;

¢ Use of local killas stone with granite dressings;

¢ Simple rectangular shapes, usually flat fronted;

¢ Some have later canted or square ground floor
bay windows and most have decorative front
porches;

* Large sash windows, originally six over six
panes;

* Common building line reflecting the ‘planned’
development of the 1840s-1850s.

Belmont Terrace:

* Medium status houses situated behind St
John’s Terrace with views from upper floors
towards Restronguet Creek;

* Mainly terraced form, two storeys high;

* One or two bays wide, sometimes double
fronted, all providing a pleasing variety;

* Shallow pitched slate roofs face the street, but
create a gentle curve;

* Axial brick chimney stacks with clay pots;

¢ Use of local killas stone with stone or brick
dressings;

* Original windows were mainly six over six
sashes but many have been replaced;

* Flat fronted with few porches.

Market Street:

* Mixed status houses and former shops,
located on narrow road which rises up the hill;

¢ This hillside location provides a dramatic
streetscape with buildings cascading down the
hill;

Properties in the conservation area
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 Larger houses close to the former primary
school;

* Varying designs but all two storey and united
by the use of stone, painted render and
shallow slated roofs;

¢ Buildings sit on the back of the pavement;

e Sashed windows with some good examples of
19th century panelled doors.

There are also smaller groups of similar, more
vernacular early to late 19th century houses and
cottages in Church Terrace, Greenbank Road, and
at the end of St John’s Terrace, including The Old
Quay Inn.

Quay Road:

 Buildings arranged on east-west orientation as
a result of the former tramway;

* Buildings can be terraced or detached;

¢ Single or two storeys;

e Simple forms give clue to previous industrial
uses e.g. the village hall;

* High stone walls, often re-using granite from
the tramway.

8.3 Building uses

Nearly all of the buildings in the conservation
area, including some formerly used in connection
with the port and other industrial activities, are

in residential uses. The conservation area also
contains a public house, two churches, vicarage,
the former primary school (currently vacant), the
village hall, a doctors’ surgery, and a Post Office.
There are no shops in Devoran.
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Greenbank Road St John’s Church The Vicarage
Quay Road Former Devoran Primary School
Quay Road Former Market Hall, Market Street
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8.4 Listed buildings

There are 33 listed buildings in the Devoran
Conservation Area, plus six listed granite
mooring posts on Devoran Quay. They are all
listed grade Il. They include a church, vicarage,
former school, and houses, as well as some

of the buildings and features associated with
Devoran’s industrial past.

The largest and most visually dominant listed
building is St John and St Petroc’s Church,
designed by J L Pearson (who also designed
Truro Cathedral) and completed in 1855. The
adjoining vicarage is dated to the 1850s and is
similarly by Pearson, who was also responsible
for Devoran Primary School, dated 1846. The
school has been altered and extended over

the years, and now encompasses the adjoining
former Market House, also built in the mid-19th
century. Together, the church, vicarage, school
and market house form a very interesting and
historically important group in the centre of the
village. Hidden from view but also part of the
early development of the village, Devoran House
is a substantial detached property sitting in a
large garden. It dates from the very early 19th
century (it is shown on the 1809 map) and is built
from coursed stone (the only such example in
Devoran) and killas rubble with granite dressings.

However, most of the listed residential properties
are in St John’s Terrace, built in the 1840s

and 1850s by developers as part of the Agar-
Robartes’ planned development of homes.
Some of them overlook the village recreation

ground and have full use of the panoramic views
southwards over the estuary and beyond.

Old Quay House dates to ¢1854 and was built as
an office and engine shed for the Redruth and
Chasewater Railway. The main building has now
been converted into a substantial private house.
Close by, the village hall has been converted
from a former railway shed of the railway
company, built in 1854. On Devoran Quay, the
Narabo ore hutches have been heavily restored
but show how different mining companies stored
their copper ore whilst they waited for shipment.
At the end of Devoran Quay, large granite posts
remind the onlooker that Devoran was once one
of Cornwall’s most important ports.

8.5 Locally listed buildings

Cornwall Council does not currently

maintain a list of locally significant buildings
(usually called the ‘Local List’) anywhere in the
County, although government advice is that the
preparation of such a list is a useful planning tool.

“Locally Listed’ buildings are valued for their
contribution to the local scene, or for their local
historic associations, but are not considered

to be of national importance. Although these
buildings have no statutory designations they can
be a material consideration when determining
planning applications. Policies to protect locally
listed buildings from inappropriate change or
development can be included in the Local Plan or
in Supplementary Planning Guidance.
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The Management Plan for the Devoran
Conservation Area therefore contains draft
criteria for inclusion and a list of potential
locally listed buildings that will be developed
in consultation with the local community. All
of them are also considered to be ‘positive’, as
defined below.

8.6 Positive buildings

In addition to the Locally Listed buildings, a
further number of unlisted buildings have been
identified as being buildings of townscape

merit. Buildings identified as having ‘townscape
merit’ will vary, but commonly they will be

good examples of relatively unaltered historic
buildings where their style, detailing and building
materials provides the streetscape with interest
and variety. Most importantly, they make a
positive contribution to the special interest of the
conservation area. Examples include:

* Belmont Terrace;

* Most of the buildings on either side of Market
Street and in Carclew Terrace;

* A number of the former industrial buildings
and more modest houses and cottages in the
Quay Road area.

Government guidance in PPG15 ‘Planning and
the historic environment’ advises that a general
presumption exists in favour of retaining those
buildings which make a positive contribution to
the character or appearance of a conservation
area (paragraph 4.27). The guidance note states
that proposals to demolish such buildings should
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be assessed against the same broad criteria as
proposals to demolish listed buildings. However,
even if an unlisted building is not noted as being
‘positive’, the District Council is obliged by law
to very carefully consider any proposals for its
demolition.

All of the unlisted family houses in the
conservation area are also subject to additional
planning controls (called an Article 4 Direction)
which is discussed in greater detail in the
Chapter 10 Issues (section 10.10) and in the
Management Plan.

8.7 Building materials

During the 19th and early 20th centuries, building
materials in Devoran would have come from
Cornish sources, particularly the local killas

and granite stone and slate. This provides
Devoran with a pleasing cohesiveness which

the introduction of modern materials would
compromise.

Roofs tend to be covered in Delabole slate,
usually wet-laid in decreasing courses (a scantle
roof), like the roof on the former stable to no. 22
St John'’s Terrace, which faces Belmont Terrace.
Where they have been replaced in imported or
artificial slate, the result is very discordant. Slate
is occasionally used as slate hanging, such as the
rear elevations of some of the houses in Belmont
Terrace.

Walls are mainly the local killas, quarried from
behind the churchyard, which varies in colour from

Market Street

Carclew Terrace

Original stables at the rear of St John’s Terrace
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